
 

Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

January 6, 2015 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

                                **Special accommodations for the handicapped and hearing impaired are available 
 by special arrangement through the City Clerk’s Office at 360-423-0900** 

 
 
Invocation: 

Pastor Mark Schmutz from Northlake Baptist Church 
 
 
Roll Call to Council Members: 

 
 
1. Approve Minutes: 

1.1. December 16, 2014 – Regular Meeting 
1.2. December 17, 2014 – Special Meeting 
 
 

2. Presentation: 
2.1. Award - Government Finance Officers Association 

 
 

3. Consent Items: 
3.1. Amendment – Cowlitz Wahkiakum Narcotics Task Force Interlocal Agreement 

 
 

4. Citizen Business: 
 
 

5. Council Business: 
5.1. Assignments – Standing Boards & Committees 
5.2. Amendment – Wetland Mitigation Lease Agreement 
5.3. Discussion – Criminal Diversion Program  

 
 
6. Workshop: 

6.1. Comprehensive Plan, G.R. Dohrn & Associates 
 
 

7. Action/Motion Items: 



 

Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

January 6, 2015 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Other Items: 

 City Manager Report 
 Staff/Dept Head Reports 
 Council Reports 
 Other Business 
 Executive Session 

 



KELSO CITY COUNCIL                                                                   December 16, 2014 
6:00 P.M.                                                                                       REGULAR MEETING 
 
Pastor Jesse Jorgensen, East Hills Alliance Church, gave the invocation.  Mayor David 
Futcher led the flag salute.  The Regular Meeting of the Kelso City Council was called to 
order by Mayor David Futcher.  Councilmembers in attendance were:  Archer, McDaniel, 
Myers, Futcher, Roberson, Franklin, and Schimmel  
 
Minutes:  Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember 
Myers, ‘Approve the Minutes of the 12/2/14 Regular Meeting,’ motion carried, all voting 
yes. 
 
PRESENTATION: 
 
Cowlitz Wahkiakum Council of Governments (CWOG) Executive Director Bill Fashing 
provided a brief overview of the CWOG’s role in the community.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

1. Re-appointments – Boards & Commissions  
2. Appointment – Municipal Court Judges 
3. Award Bids for 2015 – Water Treatment Chemical Purchase 
4. Closeout Contract – N. Kelso Ave., CHAP Overlay  
5. Closeout Contract – 2014 CHAP Street Overlay & N. Kelso Ave. Waterline 

Replacement 
6. Agreement – Maintenance Services, Southwest Washington Regional Airport 
7. Auditing of Accounts:  $1,233,264.96                 

 
Councilmember Franklin requested to have Item No. 3 (Water Treatment Chemical 
Purchase Bid Award) removed from the consent agenda for separate discussion. 
 
Upon motion by Councilmember Roberson, seconded by Councilmember Myers, 
‘Approve the Consent Agenda and the Auditing of Accounts in the amount of 
$1,233,264.96 with the removal of Item No. 3,’ motion carried, all voting yes. 
 
CITIZEN BUSINESS: 
 
Chris Turner, 8 Cedar Gates Road, spoke about the proposed planning commission 
amendment. 
 
Anthony Currera, 803 S. 6th Ave., spoke about the two left turn lanes on the Allen 
Street Bridge merging into one lane on 3rd Avenue.   
 
Curtis Hart, 115 Williams Ave., spoke about fluoride being added into the City’s 
drinking water. 
 
 



Kelso City Council                               -2-                                12/16/14 Regular Meeting 
 
Matt Nooner, 116 Williams Ave., spoke about the City doing research on water 
fluoridation. 
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS: 
 
Continuation of the Consent Agenda (Item No. 3 previously removed):  Upon motion 
by Councilmember McDaniel, seconded by Councilmember Myers, ‘Approve the Award 
Bids for 2015 Water Treatment Chemical Purchase.’ Councilmember Franklin 
recommended rejecting the sodium fluoride portion of the bid awards.  Councilmembers 
Archer, McDaniel, Myers, Futcher, Roberson, and Schimmel voted yes.  Councilmember 
Franklin voted no.  Motion passed, 6 to 1. 
 
MOTION ITEMS:         
 
Ordinance No. 14-3838 – Amending Planning Commission Code KMC 2.60:  The 
Deputy Clerk read the proposed ordinance by title only.  Upon motion by 
Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember McDaniel, ‘Adopt Ordinance 
No. 14-3838, ‘AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KELSO, WASHINGTON 
AMENDING THE KELSO MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 2.60 PLANNING 
COMMISSION.’ Councilmembers Archer, McDaniel, Myers, Futcher, Roberson, and 
Schimmel voted yes.  Councilmember Franklin voted no.  Motion passed, 6 to 1.       
 
Ordinance No. 14-3839 – Amending 2014 Budget:  The Deputy Clerk read the 
proposed ordinance by title only.  Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, seconded 
by Councilmember Roberson, ‘Adopt Ordinance No. 14-3839, ‘AN ORDINANCE OF 
THE CITY OF KELSO RELATING TO PUBLIC EXPENDITURES AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF RCW 35A.34.150, 
FIXING THE AMOUNT OF MONEY REQUIRED TO MEET SUCH EMERGENCIES 
AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF MONEY NOT PROVIDED FOR IN 
THE 2013-2014 BIENNIAL BUDGET OF THE CITY.’ Motion passed, all voting yes.      
 
Resolution No. 14-1131 – Adopt 2015-2020 Capital Improvement Program:  The 
Deputy Clerk read the proposed resolution by title only.  Upon motion by 
Councilmember Roberson, seconded by Councilmember Myers, ‘Pass Resolution No. 14-
1131, ‘A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KELSO 
RELATED TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS AND ESTABLISHING THE CITY’S 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FOR THE PERIOD OF 2015 – 2020.’ Motion 
passed, all voting yes.  
      
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
Steve Taylor:   1) Reminded the Council of the meeting with the 19th District 
Legislatures on December 17th.  2) Announced that a retirement gathering will be held on 
December 17th, for longtime employee Becky Hill.  3) He commented that the annual 
assignments to the Boards & Commissions will be discussed at the next council meeting.  



Kelso City Council                               -3-                                12/16/14 Regular Meeting 
 
4) He commented that, as a fundraiser event, the City of Kelso adopted some families and 
donated gifts to them for the holiday. 5) Reported on a Sustainable Communities Task 
Force meeting he recently attended.  6)  Reported on a meeting with representatives from 
the South Kelso Neighborhood Association (SKNA).  He spoke about the presentation 
provided by the lead organizer of the Castle Rock’s America in Bloom program Nancy 
Chennault. 
 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
Finance Director Brian Butterfield:  Merry Christmas to everyone. 
 
Community Development Director/City Engineer Mike Kardas:  1) Provided an 
update on the Chestnut Street Storm Drainage project.  2) He reported that the City of 
Kelso will be soliciting bids for repair work on the 16 inch storm drain on Minor Rd.  
Councilmember Myers spoke about plugged culverts on Hwy 99. 
 
Library Manager Cindy Donaldson:  Reported on the Tree Lighting event that was 
held on December 5th. 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 
Gary Schimmel:  No report. 
 
Jared Franklin:   Asked everyone to tour the water treatment plant and research the 
issue concerning water fluoridation. 
 
Rick Roberson:  Reported on the recent SKNA meetings. 
 
Dan Myers:  1) Reported on the poverty simulation event that was held by Lower 
Columbia Community Action Program.  2) Spoke about a missing AMTRAK sign.   
 
Todd McDaniel:  No report. 
 
Gary Archer:  Reported on the last ‘Big Idea’ meeting.  He commented that the next 
‘Big Idea’ meeting will be in Kalama next March.   
 
David Futcher:   He commented that he recently played the innkeeper role in a 
Christmas event at his church. 
 
There being no further business, Mayor Futcher adjourned the meeting at 6:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _________________________________  
                    CITY CLERK                         MAYOR                         



KELSO CITY COUNCIL                                                                   December 17, 2014 
3:30 P.M.                                                                                         SPECIAL MEETING 
 
The Special Meeting of the Kelso City Council was called to order by Mayor David 
Futcher.  Councilmembers in attendance were:  Futcher, Franklin, Archer, Myers, 
Roberson, and Schimmel. Councilmember McDaniel was absent. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Adopted 2015 Legislative Agenda:  Legislative Representatives Dean Takko and Brian 
Blake and representatives from Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs met 
with the Council and discussed the adopted legislative agenda.  
 
There being no further business, Mayor Futcher adjourned the meeting at 5:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                                 MAYOR 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                            CITY CLERK 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 

 
SUBJECT TITLE:   
AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO THE COWLITZ 
WAHKIAKUM NARCOTICS TASK FORCE 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
 
 
  
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Andrew Hamilton 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: Police   
 
For Agenda of: January, 6 2015 
 
Originator:   Andrew Hamilton    
 
 
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 
Agenda Item Attachments:    
Proposed Amendment No. 4 to Interlocal Drug Task Force Agreement 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
The City participates in the Cowlitz Wahkiakum Narcotics Task Force and supports its operations with both law 
enforcement staff and financial contributions.  A change to the 1987 Interlocal Agreement is required to reflect 
the new 2015 funding protocol agreed to by the governing members of the Narcotics Task Force, as well as 
the change in participation by the City of Longview.  The City of Kelso currently contributes $6,000 and 
assumes the cost of one detective sergeant assigned to the task force.  The costs of one additional Kelso 
detective are covered by the task force’s grants and income.   
 
The amendment repeals the sunset clause contained within Amendment No. 3 which was adopted in February 
2014, and specifically names Cowlitz County as the “seizing agency” for the purpose of search warrants, 
orders for seizures, and civil forfeiture actions commenced with regards to property seized by the Task Force. 
 
 
OPTIONS: 
1) Move to approve Amendment No. 4 to the Cowlitz Wahkiakum Narcotics Task Force Interlocal Agreement; 
2)  Do not approve the Amendment; 
3)  Send the Amendment back to the Task Force governing board with instructions. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Move to approve Amendment No. 4 to the Cowlitz Wahkiakum Narcotics Task Force Interlocal Agreement. 
 
 
 
 









AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:   Standing Committee/Board 
Assignments, City of Kelso Councilmembers 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of: December 16, 2014  
 
Originator:      Steve Taylor    
 
 
 
City Attorney:       
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
 
Exhibit A - 2014 Worksheet 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
This is a yearly review of the City Council Committee/Board Assignments, and the opportunity to 
make any changes.  The 2014 list of assignments is attached for review with the addition of the 
Cowlitz County Housing First Coalition which has requested an elected representative from Kelso to 
participate.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Staff recommends review, changes and approval of the 2015 City Council Committee/Board 
Assignments for 2015. 



Boards & Commissions  5/20/2014 
 

KELSO CITY COUNCIL STANDING 
COMMITTEE/BOARD ASSIGNMENTS-2014 

WORKSHEET 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 

SWEDC 
 

Quarterly 
 

 
Rick Roberson 

 

 
Todd 

McDaniel 

Airport Authority 
 

Monthly, 2nd Thursday 
3:00 pm 

Kelso Council Chambers 
David Futcher 

 
Gary Archer 
(Alternate) 

CAP Board 
Monthly, 4th Wednesday 

5:30 pm 
1526 Commerce, LV 

 
Todd McDaniel 

 
Gary Archer 

CEDC Ex Board 
Monthly, 3rd Wednesday 

Noon, US Bank Bldg 

 
Steve Taylor 

 

 
N/A 

CEDC 
Monthly, 3rd Wednesday 
7:00 am, LCC Student 

Center 

 
Rick Roberson 

 

 
Steve Taylor 

City Audit 
Monthly, 3rd Tuesday 

2:00 – 5:00 pm 
Kelso City Hall 

Dan Myers 
Gary Schimmel 

Todd 
McDaniel 

(Alternate) 

Cowlitz Transit 
Authority Board 

Monthly, 4th Wednesday 
4:00 pm 

Longview City Hall 

Todd McDaniel 
Rick Roberson 

 
Gary Schimmel 

(Alternate) 

CWCOG 
Monthly, 3rd Tuesday 

Noon, County Admin Bldg 
Dan Myers 

 
Rick Roberson 

Disability Board As Needed David Futcher N/A 

 
911 E-Board 

Monthly 
10:00 am 

EOC, Hall of Justice 
Steve Taylor N/A 

Cowlitz County 
911 Council 

Quarterly 
EOC, Hall of Justice 

Gary Schimmel 
Gary Archer 
(Alternate) 

KDRA 
Monthly 

3rd Wednesday 
Place/time TBD 

Rick Roberson Gary Archer 

Fire Pension Board 
Quarterly, 3rd Tuesday 

4:30 pm 
Ex Session Room 

David Futcher 
Traci Howard 

Brian 
Butterfield 

Library Board 
Monthly, 2nd Monday 

7:00 pm 
Library 

Gary Schimmel 
 

Gary Archer 

Lodging Tax 
Advisory 

As Needed 
 

Todd McDaniel 
 

N/A 



Boards & Commissions  5/20/2014 
 

KELSO CITY COUNCIL STANDING 
COMMITTEE/BOARD ASSIGNMENTS-2014 

WORKSHEET 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 
Multi-Agency 
Coordinating 

Group 
TBD Steve Taylor David Futcher 

Park Board 
Liaison 

Monthly, 3rd Tuesday 
7:00 pm 

Council Chambers 
Gary Archer 

Gary 
Schimmel 
(Alternate) 

Public Health 
Quarterly, 4th Thursday 

4:00 pm 
Health Dept 

Dan Myers N/A 

Sewer Operating 
Board 

(TRRWA) 

Monthly, 3rd Wednesday 
10:00 am 

Sewer Treatment Plant 

 
Mike Kardas 

 
Steve Taylor 
(Alternate) 

Solid Waste 
Technical 

As Needed 
County Bldg 

 
Steve Taylor 

(Public Works 
Director) 

 
Dan Myers 
(Alternate) 

MPO 
Monthly 

Date/Time TBD 
 

Mike Kardas 

 
Rick Roberson 

(Alternate) 

RTPO 
Quarterly 

Date/Time TBD 
 

Mike Kardas 

 
Rick Roberson 

 

‘Big Idea’ TBD 
Gary Archer 

 

Gary 
Schimmel 
(Alternate) 

Cowlitz County 
Government 

Summit 
As Needed 

Dan Myers 
Gary Archer 

Rick Roberson 
(Alternate) 

Pathways 2020 As Needed Steve Taylor  

Cowlitz County 
Housing First 

Coalition 

Monthly, 3rd Wednesday 
1:30 pm 

Lower Columbia CAP Office 
in the Altrusa Room, located 
at 1526 Commerce Avenue, 

Longview, Washington. 

  

 
 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  Amending Wetland 
Mitigation Lease Agreement with Habitat Bank, 
LLC. (Harts Lake property) 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor, City Manager 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Council   
 
For Agenda of:______January 6, 2015_____  
 
Originator:                 Steve Taylor__    
 
 
 
City Attorney:      Janean Parker 
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Amendment to Lease Agreement with Habitat Bank, LLC 
August 20th, 2013 Approved Lease Agreement 
March 5, 2002 Agenda Packet Item accepting Jacobsen Trust Property 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The City owns 240 acres of real property transferred in 2002 from the Department of Natural 
Resources located along the Coweeman River and extending south into the east hills of Kelso directly 
east of the Aldercrest landslide.  The property, known as the Jacobsen Parcel, was transferred to the 
City as part of a formal state land transfer program that provided funding to DNR ($3.2 million) for 
the timber value of the land—a portion of which went into the Common School Fund and another 
portion to fund the purchase of more economically viable land.  The terms of the transfer to the City 
requires that the property be “used exclusively for open space or recreation purposes for a minimum 
of thirty years from the date of this deed.”  Further research confirmed that the City’s intent for 
receiving the land was to preserve it for open space.  However, it appears the City would have the 
option to harvest timber from portions of the land in accordance with accepted DNR practices after 
March 2032. 
 
In 2013, the City was approached by Habitat Bank, LLC about including the lower Harts Lake portion 
of the land (approximately 40-60 acres) within a wetland mitigation bank.  Basically, wetland and 
wildlife habitat in the area would be improved, thus generating credits that could be purchased for 
mitigation purposes on regional projects within the Cowlitz River watershed.  In August 2013, the 
City Council approved a lease agreement with Habitat Bank that would provide the city with 20% of 
the gross revenues generated from credits purchased from the bank proportionate to the City’s share 
of the land included.  However, the defined area of the City’s property to be included within the bank 



was left open until Habitat Bank completed its delineation process and worked through the extensive 
state and federal agency regulatory approval process.  Once a solid number of credits (along with 
their associated value) was determined, the City would decide the total amount of acreage it wanted 
to include within the lease, initially estimated not to exceed 140 acres.  The estimated value to the 
City last August was $400,000 to $1,000,000.  The proceeds from the credits are proposed at this 
time to be used for parks, open space, and recreation facility construction, repair, and enhancement. 
 
Habitat Bank has recently informed the City that the upper forested portion of the property (199 
acres) would generate 20.85 net credits resulting in approximately $834,000 of revenue once all 
credits were sold.  The lower 40 acres of restored wetlands along the Coweeman River look to 
generate an approximate $690,000 for a total of $1,524,000 to the City. 
 
Staff’s recommendation is to include the entire 240 acres transferred to the City by the DNR into the 
mitigation bank, thus maintaining the land for conservation and open space purposes in perpetuity.  
The proceeds generated from this action can be used for a variety of purposes, including the 
development of better recreational access points to the land, as was originally intended. 
 
The current approved agreement already commits the City to 60 acres of the lower portion of the 
property.  Staff’s recommendation would include the remainder of the two Jacobsen Trust parcels 
transferred to the City by the DNR. 
 
 
OPTIONS: 

1) Move to approve the amended wetland mitigation lease agreement with Habitat Bank, LLC. 
2)  Do not approve the amendment. 
3)  Negotiate alternatives to the proposed amendment. 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the amended wetland mitigation lease agreement with Habitat Bank, LLC. 



 
 
 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
Thomas F. Haensly 
144 Railroad Avenue, Suite 217 
Edmonds, Washington 98020 
 

 

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for Use of Property 

 
 
Grantor:  City of Kelso 
Grantee:  Habitat Bank, LLC 
Abbreviated legal description:  Portion Section 36, Township 8 North, Range 2 West WM. 
Assessor’s Tax Parcel Number(s):  WI36-01-001; 24125                                                         
Auditor File No. of Documents Assigned, Released, or Amended:  _______________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

This AMENDMENT NO. 1 to the Agreement for Use of Property dated August 20th, 2013 is made 
between the City of Kelso (“City”) and Habitat Bank LLC (“HB”) on this ______ day of January, 2015. 

 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on August 20th, 2013, the City and HB entered into an Agreement for Use of Property 
describing the terms and conditions under which the City granted HB rights to the development of a 
Mitigation Project on certain city owned property; and  

WHEREAS, under section 2 of that agreement the parties contemplated that the property subject to the 
project would be approximately 60 acres of the Coweeman River floodplain and up to 80 acres of 
adjacent upland property, and attached as Exhibit B thereto; and  

WHEREAS, under section 2 of that agreement, the parties agreed to amend the agreement with an 
updated description of the boundaries and configuration of the property once the area had been 
reviewed and delineated; and  

WHEREAS, HB has completed its work related to the review and delineation and has determined that, in 
addition to the property of the Coweeman Floodplain, that there are an additional 199 acres of forested 
property above the Hart’s Lake area available for the project and has proposed amending the 
agreement to include this additional area, which would bring the total property included in the project 
to be approximately 240 acres; and  



WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the agreement in accordance with paragraph 2 to reflect the 
revised description of the property that is the subject of the agreement; and  

WHEREAS, the timing and criteria for the title report at paragraph 4 was not clarified in the original 
Agreement and has been updated; 

NOW THEREFORE, the City and HB hereby agree as follows:  

 1.  Paragaph 2 of the Agreement for Use of Property dated August 20th, 2013, is hereby amended as 
follows:  

Property.  The Property shall be comprised of approximately 60 acres of Coweeman River 
floodplain and up to 80 acres of adjacent upland buffer, all of which shall be contiguous acres 
and as generally shown in Exhibit “B,” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference.  The Parties shall determine the boundaries and configuration of the Property at a 
later date and in association with the Mitigation Project process.  Upon such determination, the 
Parties shall amend this Agreement to reflect such determination. 

On January ___, 2015, the parties have revised the boundaries and configuration as 
contemplated by this paragraph.  The revised description of the Property shall be comprised of 
Cowlitz County Assessor Parcel Nos. WI36-01-001 and 24125                                        
consisting of approximately 40 acres of Coweeman River floodplain and 199 acres of adjacent 
upland buffer all of which are contiguous acres and are legally described in Exhibit “A”, which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, hereinafter the “Property”.   

2.  The first sentence of Paragraph 4 of the Agreement for Use of Property dated August 20th, 2013, is 
hereby amended as follows:   

At least 120 days before April 25, 2016, the date specified for final permit approval, HB shall 
have a preliminary title commitment prepared showing the condition of the title to the Property 
including all exceptions set forth in Schedule B thereof.   

3.  All other terms and conditions of the Agreement for Use of Property shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Dated this       _ day of                          , 2015   

HABITAT BANK, LLC  CITY OF KELSO 

By:____________________       _______ 

Name/Title: ________________________     

 By:____________________________ 

_______________, City Manager 

 

  APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 

  By:____________________________ 
             City Attorney 
  

  ATTEST: 
 
By:____________________________ 
 City Clerk 
  

 

  



EXHIBIT A 

(updated January 6th, 2015) 

Legal Description of City of Kelso Property 

 

The E1/2 of the E1/2, the SW1/4 of the NE1/4 and the NW1/4 of the SE1/4 of Section 36, Township 8 
North, Range 2 West, Willamette Meridian, Cowlitz County, Washington, according to U.S. Government 
subdivision procedures. 



STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 

                  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF _________________ ) 
 
 On this ____ day of ____________ 2015, before me personally appeared ____________, to me 
known to be the CITY MANAGER of the CITY OF KELSO, a Washington municipality, that executed the within 
and foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and 
deed of said municipality for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that he was 
authorized to execute said instrument on behalf of said municipality. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year 
last above written. 

 

__________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  
Washington, residing at _______________ 
Print Name: ________________________ 
My commission expires_______________ 

 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF _________________ ) 
 
 On this ____ day of ____________ 2013, before me personally appeared ___________, to me 
known to be the Manager of HABITAT BANK, LLC, a Washington limited liability company, that executed 
the within and foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and 
voluntary act and deed of said company for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath 
stated that he was authorized to execute said instrument on behalf of said company. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year 
last above written 

 

__________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  
Washington, residing at _______________ 
Print Name: ________________________ 
My commission expires______________ 





















































AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:   Criminal Diversion Options 
Pertaining to Kelso Municipal Court 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of: January 6, 2015  
 
Originator:      Steve Taylor    
 
 
 
City Attorney:       
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
City Manager Taylor and Police Chief Hamilton will provide information on the options for the Criminal 
Diversion Program. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  Comprehensive Plan 
Presentation – G. R. Dohrn and Associates 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Gregg Dohrn 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Council  
 
For Agenda of: January 6, 2015 
 
Originator: ________Steve Taylor  
 
City Attorney:      Janean Parker 
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The City’s current Comprehensive Plan was prepared in 1979 and adopted in 1980 shortly after the 
eruption of Mt. St Helens. Since then portions of the plan were updated in 1987 and 1992 and the 
associated maps were updated in 1994. The proposed plan is intended to replace that document and is 
based on a Vision Statement describing the preferred future for the City. The Vision Statement was 
articulated through a series of community workshops in 2009 and was approved by the Kelso City 
Council on February 2, 2010. The primary focus of this Comprehensive Plan are a series of goals, 
policies, and objectives that describe in more detail what the City hopes to accomplish over the next 
ten to twenty years, how it hopes to accomplish it, and what action steps it is prepared to take to 
achieve it. 
 
Since the adoption of the Vision Statement in 2010 not much progress was made towards writing a 
new plan until the spring of 2013 when the City hired planning consultant Gregg Dohrn to help draft 
the new document. Mr. Dohrn facilitated numerous discussions with the Planning Commission and held 
a management team meeting on April 18, 2014 with City staff to acquire feedback and insight to 
ensure the goals, policies, and objectives were appropriate for Kelso. The Plan was made available for 
public consumption and comment on September 4, 2014 and a public hearing was held at the October 
14th Planning Commission meeting. On December 9, 2014, the Planning Commission recommended 
that the City Council adopt the proposed updated plan; that version can be found on the City’s website. 
 
During the comment period and public hearing the City received several comments that resulted in 
changes to the document recommended by the Planning Commission; a version containing these 
changes was e-mailed to Council last week. All of the accompanying maps, plans, and documents can 
be found here. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
No action required at this time.   

http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/comprehensive_plan_draft_09-03-14.pdf
http://www.kelso.gov/departments-services/community-development/planning-department/current-projects/comprehensive-plan

	1. - 2015-01-06
	1.1.  - 2014-12-16
	1.2. - 2014-12-17 Special
	3.1. - Ag Sum - Amendment No. 4 Narcotics Task Force Interlocal 01062015
	3.1.1. - Amend No 4 CWNTF 01062015
	5.1. - Ag Sum Standing Boards
	5.1.1. - B&Cs Exhibit A
	5.2. - Ag Sum - Amnd to Wetland Mitigation Lease Agmnt 01062015
	5.2.1. - Hart Lake Wetland Contract--Revision No  1  12-31-14 jp
	5.2.2. - Agr - Habitat Bank LLC Wetland Mitigation 8-20-2013
	5.2.3. - DNR land transfer 2002 agenda item
	5.3. - Ag Sum Criminal Diversion
	6.1. - Ag Sum - Comp Plan Update Presenation 01062015

